
1001 E. Ninth St., Building B, Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2434 – Fax:  775.328.6176 

www.nnph.org 

P. 775-328-2400
1001 E Ninth St. Bldg. B

Reno, NV 89512 
NNPH.org 

Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board
Meeting Notice and Agenda

Members March 6, 2025
Matthew Buehler, Chair 5:30 p.m.
Kenneth Lund 
John Adams 

 

Chad Carnes, P.E. Northern Nevada Public Health 
Christopher Reede Conference Rooms A&B (Building B)
Matt Smith – Alt. 1001 East Ninth Street
Julianne Zotter, P.E., Alt. Reno, NV 

______________________________________________________________________________
An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no action will be taken.
 

5:30 p.m. 

1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

2. *Pledge of Allegiance 

3. *Public Comment 

Action may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter 
is specifically listed on an agenda as an action item.  All public comment is limited to three 
minutes per person.  Members of the public may submit public comment by either attending the 
meeting in person or submitting comments in writing.  Comments submitted in writing must be 
submitted to smhopkins@nnph.org no later than 4:00 p.m. on the day before the scheduled 
meeting.

4. Approval of Agenda – (For possible action) 
March 6, 2025

5. Approval of Draft Minutes – (For possible action) 
January 30, 2025

6.  Public Hearing to determine whether to recommend approval to the District Board of Health 
for a variance for APN 087-044-17, from sections 100.025, Table 3 and 100.100, Table 4 of the 
Northern Nevada Public Health Regulations Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation. The 
variance requests permission to install a Mode 3 Orenco AX20 treatment system with an Orenco
GeoFlow subsurface drip. The variance also requests reduced setbacks from impervious soils and 
high seasonal ground water. Additionally, the variance requests to have no requirement to install 
fill for the repair area due to financial hardship. – (For possible action) 

Staff Representative:  Matt Simpson

BENEDICKT, TAYLOR 
17590 E Aspen Cir 
Reno, NV 89508



March 6, 2025 Sewage Wastewater and Sanitation Hearing Board Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 2 

7. *Public Comment 
Action may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter 
is specifically listed on an agenda as an action item.  All public comment is limited to three 
minutes per person.  Members of the public may submit public comment by either attending the 
meeting in person or submitting comments in writing.  Comments submitted in writing must be 
submitted to smhopkins@nnph.org no later than 4:00 p.m. on the day before the scheduled 
meeting.

8. Adjournment – (For possible action)

____________________________________________________________________________

Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, 
withdrawn from the agenda, moved to the agenda of another later meeting, moved to or from the Consent section, or they may 
be voted on in a block. Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time but may be heard 
later. Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately 
unless withdrawn from the Consent agenda. 

Special Accommodations: The Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Board Meetings are accessible to the disabled. Disabled 
members of the public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Environmental 
Health Services in writing at the Northern Nevada Public Health, 1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, NV 89512, by 
calling 775.328.2434 option 8, or by email to smhopkins@nnph.org, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

Public Comment: During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or off the agenda, 
to include items to be heard on consent, by filling out a “Request to Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the 
Recording Secretary.  For the remainder of the agenda, public comment will only be heard during items that are marked FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION. All  publ ic  comment should  be addressed  to  the Sewage,  Wastewater and Sanitat ion 
Hearing  Advisory Board  and  not  an  indiv idual  member .   The Board  asks tha t  your  comments are 
expressed in  a cour teous manner.   Any public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the 
item and must be about the specific item being considered by the Board.  Public comment and presentations for individual 
agenda items are limited as follows: fifteen minutes each for staff and applicant presentations, five minutes for a speaker 
representing a group, and three minutes for individual speakers unless extended by questions from the Board or by action 
of the Chair.  Reasonable efforts will be made to hear all public comment during the meeting.   

All public comment is limited to three minutes per person.  Unused time may not be reserved by the speaker nor allocated to 
another speaker. 

Response to Public Comment: The Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board can deliberate or take action 
only if a matter has been listed on an agenda properly posted prior to the meeting. During the public comment period, speakers 
may address matters listed or not listed on the published agenda. The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses 
to public comments by the Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board. However, responses from the Board 
members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without notice to the public. On the advice 
of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing advisory 
Board will consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, 
ask for Health District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda. The Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation 
Hearing Advisory Board may do this during the public comment item. (No discussion among Board Members will take place 
on the item)” 

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website: 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 

Northern Nevada Public Health, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV 
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV  
Northern Nevada Public Health Website:  www.nnph.org  
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials: Supporting materials are available to the public at the Northern 
Nevada Public Health located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, Nevada.  Ms. Susan Hopkins, Office Specialist for Environmental 
Health Services is the person designated t o respond to requests for supporting materials. Ms. Hopkins is located at the 
Northern Nevada Public Health and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2434 option 8 or by email at 
smhopkins@nnph.org. Supporting materials are also available at the Northern Nevada Public Health Website  
www.nnph.org pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. 











P. 775-328-2434
1001 E Ninth St. Bldg. B

Reno, NV 89512
NNPH.org

Staff Report
Board Meeting Date: March 6, 2025

TO: Sewage, Wastewater, and Sanitation Hearing Advisory Board

FROM: Matthew Simpson, Environmental Health Specialist
775-567-2709, msimpson@nnph.org

SUBJECT: Variance Case H25-0001VARI; Variance to multiple sections of the regulation,
including a reduced setback to ground water and impervious soils as stated in SWS 
100.025, Table 3 and 100.100, Table 4 at Parcel 087-044-17, 17590 E. Aspen Cir, 
Reno, NV 89508. Additionally, requesting no requirement to install fill for the repair 
area due to financial hardship.

SUMMARY

This staff report summarizes the Environmental Health Services Division’s (EHS) review of the 
submitted variance application for your decision to recommend or deny approval to the District Board 
of Health (DBOH) a variance for the installation of an alternative septic treatment system from Orenco 
with a reduced setback to ground water and to be placed in soil outside the allowable percolation rates.  
The variance is for 17590 E. Aspen Circle, APN 087-044-17, owned by Taylor Benedickt.

Previous Action

There has been no previous action with this variance request.  If the variance is approved, the project will 
go through the normal Building permit application process.

Background

The Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH) Regulations Governing Sewage, Wastewater, and 
Sanitation (regulations) require that septic systems maintain a vertical setback to ground water to protect 
from potential contamination.  The regulations require that standard septic systems maintain 4’ separation 
and engineered sand filter systems maintain a 2’ separation.  In addition, the regulations require that 
systems are installed in soils that are able to disperse water from the system, as measured by the soil 
percolation rate.  In general, the allowable percolation rates are between 5 and 60 minutes per inch for 
standard systems and between 5 and 90 minutes per inch for engineered sand filter systems.  As indicated, 
these regulatory requirements can be found in sections 100.025, Table 3 and 100.100, Table 4.

Site conditions for the parcel are challenging.  NNPH staff have inspected a test trench and identified 
high seasonal groundwater levels at the surface.  Additionally, percolation testing by a licensed engineer 
has indicated a very slow percolation rate of 480 minutes per inch.  These conditions are extremely 
restrictive with regard to the placement of a septic system.  The only type of system that NNPH has 
permitted without a variance in these types of conditions has been an engineered sand filter with a 
minimum of 4’ of engineered fill, at least 2’ of which would have to be above the ground to maintain 2’ 
vertical separation to the groundwater call.  Additionally, NNPH would require that any groundwork 
needed for the repair area by constructed at the time of the primary install to ensure that it was ready in 
the event of failure.  The applicant is requesting to install a different type of advanced treatment system, 
and not have to do any needed preparation work for the repair area in advance due to financial hardship.  



The variance proposal is to install a Mode 3 Orenco Systems Advantex AX20 Treatment System, with 
UV disinfection.  This system is NSF/ANSI 245 certification, which requires a minimum of 50% 
nitrogen reduction.  Nitrate is one of the biggest risks to groundwater from septic systems.  For
comparison, single pass sand filters as are used in Washoe County are generally thought to reduce 
nitrogen levels by approximately 40%.  In addition to nitrogen reduction, the testing of the proposed 
system has shown it reduces other potential contaminants by the same or greater levels than a sand filter.  
After treatment, the effluent will discharge via a drip system and percolate through 2’ of soil.   Staff has 
reviewed the system literature and feels that if functioning properly, the system will treat effluent 
adequately for a reduced vertical setback to groundwater. 

In regard to the slow percolation rates of the native soil, the design includes two calculations to 
demonstrate that the system will work.  First, the size of the bed is calculated on the actual percolation 
rate of 480.  In theory, that by itself should be sufficient to allow for dispersal.   In addition, the design 
engineer provided an additional calculation that demonstrates that at 480 minutes per inch, the bed can 
disperse 3 inches of water a day, or 8,610 gallons.   With the expected usage of 1000 gallons per day, 
staff does not see an issue with dispersal into the native soils.   

Staff recognize the need to allow additional types of treatment systems beyond the sand filters 
currently allowed by regulation.  It is the intent to make changes to the regulations to allow for 
these types of systems in the future without a variance.  These alternative treatment systems and 
services are becoming more widely available and accepted by different jurisdictions.  The ability 
to use proven treatment systems will also alleviate the issue with the limited availability of the 
correct sand for sand filters and possibly reduce installation costs for homeowners. 

There are also some concerns, such as the availability of licensed maintenance personnel or 
replacement parts. These types of systems require maintenance to function correctly.  However, as 
more of these systems are put into place, the industry should grow and reduce those concerns. In 
the interim, staff have designed specific conditions of approval to reduce the associated risks of 
lack of maintenance.  With the benefits that these types of technologies will bring and the conditions 
of approval in place, staff are supportive of the proposal. 

The final request of the variance is to not have to install fill for the repair area at time of primary 
installation.  Depending on site conditions and how difficult the preparation work needed for the 
repair, it is the practice of EHS to require that the repair area be made ready so as to reduce the time 
needed to install a repair when needed.  In this case, staff is comfortable that the installation of the 
fill will not unnecessarily delay installation of a repair. 

Findings of Fact 

The Board must consider the following when making a recommendation on this variance to the DBOH: 

1. Will the proposed variance result in contamination of water to the extent it cannot be used 
for its existing or expected use?
 
Reply: This type of system is NSF 245 certified and will provide comparable treatment to 
a sand filter system. Provided that the conditions of approval are met and routine 
maintenance is performed, the system should function as intended and the effluent discharge 
to groundwater should be clean or cleaner than a sand filter.  Therefore it should not pose 
an increased threat to groundwater contamination.

2. Will the proposed variance pose a threat to public health?

Reply: There are two primary ways that sewage can pose a threat to public health, direct 
exposure and groundwater contamination in areas with domestic wells.  Sewage discharged 
underground should not allow for direct exposure as long as the field functions, the same as 



any onsite sewage disposal system.  As indicated in question #1, the system should also not 
cause a groundwater contamination issue as long as the system is maintained and functions 
properly.  All other setbacks and design to regulatory requirements designed to be protective 
of public health. 

3. Are there other reasonable alternatives? 

Reply: NNPH regulations allow for a passive sand filtration system to be installed in soils 
between 60-90 minutes per inch and only a 2-foot vertical setback to groundwater. When 
there are slower percolation rates of the soils, the other option would be removal of soils 
and replacement with engineered fill materials.  Engineers have designed systems to meet 
these requirements in the past. With high seasonal ground water at surface a mounded 
system with 4’ of engineered fill would be required to maintain separation from impervious 
soils.  EHS would accept a standard sand filter with fill and an appropriate design on this 
property.  While specific estimates of these other options were not provided with the 
variance application, the costs of construction are known to be quite high. 

 

Conditions of Approval 

EHS staff are recommending the following conditions of approval:

1. A maintenance contract is required with periodic monitoring for the Orenco wastewater 
treatment system.  After the initial system check and maintenance, a minimum of annual 
maintenance and certification is required with records kept for a minimum of 5 years.  
Records must be made available to NNPH upon request.   

2. All instances of system non-function must be reported to NNPH for review and repaired 
immediately.  In the event of failure to maintain or lack of system function, NNPH may 
require sampling and/or impose restrictions on the property based on the functionality of 
the treatment system, up to and including additional repair. 

3. The variance, with all conditions of approval, must be recorded to the property with 
language that does not allow for the removal without NNPH approval or connection to 
municipal sewer. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation (SWS) Hearing Board support the presented 
Variance Case # H25-0001VARI (Benedickt) to allow the proposed advanced treatment system with a 
reduced vertical setback to groundwater and installation into soils with percolation rates outside of what 
is allowed by regulation. 

Possible Motion

Should the SWS Hearing Board wish to approve the variance application, the three possible motions
would be:

1. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of Variance 
Case # H25-0001VARI (Benedickt) to allow the proposed advanced treatment system with 
a reduced vertical setback to groundwater and installation into soils with percolation rates 
outside of what is allowed by regulation, including all recommended conditions.”; OR 



2. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of Variance 
Case # H25-0001VARI (Benedickt) to allow the proposed advanced treatment system with 
a reduced vertical setback to groundwater and installation into soils with percolation rates 
outside of what is allowed by regulation, without conditions.”; OR

3. “Move to present to the District Board of Health a recommendation for approval of Variance 
Case # H25-0001VARI (Benedickt) to allow the proposed advanced treatment system with 
a reduced vertical setback to groundwater and installation into soils with percolation rates 
outside of what is allowed by regulation, with the following conditions (if the Board wishes 
to impose conditions, they would list them here).” 

The SWS Board may also formulate their own motion or request additional information from the 
applicant if desired. 





… continued from previous page

A diagram of the location and distance to any well and on-site sewage disposal system within 150
feet of the subject property (if none, so indicate).

A diagram of the distances from the proposed on-site disposal system to any proposed or existing 
on-site well.

A diagram of the location of any percolation hole or test trench(es) on theproperty.

A diagram to scale of the location of all proposed on-site sewage disposal system components, 
including a delineated area for future replacement of disposal trench(es).

A diagram of the distance to any available sewer system (if none, so indicate). 

The number of bedrooms in the proposed building.

The maximum slope across the disposal area.

A diagram of the lot dimensions and total lot area.

The location of water supply lines.

A diagram of all structures on site.

A diagram of all existing and proposed drainage improvements.

A diagram of the location of any watercourse and/or natural drainage channel within 150 feet of 
the property (if none, so indicate).

Soil logs and percolation test results, including calculations and actual field data (if required).

Sewage loading calculations and application rates.

System sizing calculations.

Pertinent geological and hydrogeological information.

Construction drawings, cross-sections and specifications of the proposed system. 

Certification by an engineer that the proposed system is properly designed to function for at least 
ten (10) years (engineer’s seal).

Submit a completed Notice of Special   On-Site Requirements. We will  give you  the form after
variance is approved by the District Board of Health.

BE PREPARED TO SUBMIT: 

Other information may be required to enable the Board to adequately consider theapplication.

THE SUBMITTED DATA, DOCUMENTS AND DESIGNS MUST DEMONSTRATE WHETHER: 

1. The proposed system will significantly and/or adversely impact any water so that the water may no
longer be used for its existing or expected beneficial use.

2. The proposed system will be detrimental or pose a danger to the public health, safety or create or
contribute to a public health hazard.

3. Other reasonable alternatives for compliance with these regulations are available to the applicant.
State the alternatives considered, including reasons for rejection.

ALL INFORMATION MUST BE PROVIDED AND THIS APPLICATION MUST BE PROPERLY COMPLETED PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL.
FAILURE TO DO SO MAY RESULT IN SIGNIFICANT DELAYS TO THE PROCESSING OF THIS VARIANCE REQUEST.













4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 Carson City, Nevada 89706
775-684-4200 775-687-7570 dpbh.nv.gov

Page 1 of 1

Joe Lombardo
Governor

Richard Whitley, MS
Director

DEPARTMENT OF

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
D PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Helping people. It’s who we are and what we do.

Lisa Sherych
Administrator

Ihsan Azzam, 
Ph.D., M.D.

Chief Medical Officer

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

9, 2023

Mark Schaefer
Orenco Systems, Inc
814 Airway Ave
Sutherlin, Oregon, 97479

RE: ORENCO SYSTEMS, INC. Model AX20-RT Treatment system. Size: 1000 gallons

The above-referenced system has been reviewed and approval is given for the Orenco AX20-RT 1000 Gallon water 
treatment systems in the state of Nevada with the following conditions and meet all applicable requirements of NAC 444 
for Aerobic WastewaterTreatment Units. 

1. Plans for the installation of the AX20-RT Treatment System must be prepared by a State of Nevada Registered 
Professional Engineer. The design engineer will be responsible for overseeing the construction and installation of 
the system. The engineer shall, within 30 days after the date on which the construction of the system is 
completed, submit a letter to the administrative authority stating that the system was constructed in 
accordance with the approved plans.

2. The design plans for an aerobic wastewater treatment unit must include a schematic detailing a 24-hour 
operating alarm system for the aerobic wastewater treatment unit.

3. A maintenance agreement for an annual inspection for the life span of the system must be submitted with the 
application to construct. [NAC 444.8314]

4. The system must
a.

each 30 milligrams or less per liter.
b. An aerobic wastewater treatment unit that produces effluent with a level of total suspended solids or 

accordance with this section and NAC 444.8316 and 444.8318 before the unit may be used.
5. requirements pursuant to its Standard 40 system. Deviation from that 

will require the system to be re-reviewed. [NAC 444.8316]

Please contact Southern Nevada Health District (Clark County) and Washoe County Health District (Washoe) for 
additional requirements their agencies may have to use the system within their jurisdiction. 

If you have any questions, please call me at (775) 546-5530. 

Sincerely

Teresa Hayes, Environmental Health Program Manager



4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 Carson City, Nevada 89706 
775-684-4200 775-687-7570 dpbh.nv.gov

Page 1 of 1

Joe Lombardo
Governor

Richard Whitley, MS
Director

DEPARTMENT OF

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
D PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Helping people. It’s who we are and what we do.

Lisa Sherych
Administrator

Ihsan Azzam, 
Ph.D., M.D.

Chief Medical Officer

______________________________________________________________________________________________
, 2023 

Mark Schaefer 
Orenco Systems, Inc 
814 Airway Ave 
Sutherlin, Oregon, 97479 

RE: ORENCO SYSTEMS, INC. Model AX2 -RT Treatment system. Size: 1 0 allons 

The above-referenced system has been reviewed and approval is given for the Orenco AX2 -RT Gallon 
water treatment systems in the tate of Nevada with the following conditions and meet all applicable 
requirements of NAC 444 for Aerobic Wastewater Treatment Units.  

Plans for the installation of the AX2 -RT Treatment System must be prepared by a State of Nevada Registered
Professional Engineer. The design engineer will be responsible for overseeing the construction and installation of
the system. The engineer shall, within 30 days after the date on which the construction of the system is
completed, submit a letter to the administrative authority stating that the system was constructed in
accordance with the approved plans.
The design plans for an aerobic wastewater treatment unit must include a schematic detailing a 24-hour
operating alarm system for the aerobic wastewater treatment unit.
A maintenance agreement for an annual inspection for the life span of the system must be submitted with the
application to construct. [NAC 444.8314]
The system must

each 30 milligrams or less per liter.
An aerobic wastewater treatment unit that produces effluent with a level of total suspended solids or

accordance with this section and NAC 444.8316 and 444.8318 before the unit may be used.
requirements pursuant to its Standard 40 system. Deviation from that

will require the system to be re-reviewed. [NAC 444.8316]

Please contact Southern Nevada Health District (Clark County) and Washoe County Health District (Washoe) for 
additional requirements their agencies may have to use the system within their jurisdiction. 

If you have any questions, please call me at (775) 546-5530. 

Sincerely

Teresa Hayes, Environmental Health Program Manager



4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 Carson City, Nevada 89706 
775-684-4200 775-687-7570 dpbh.nv.gov

Page 1 of 1

Joe Lombardo
Governor

Richard Whitley, MS
Director

DEPARTMENT OF

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
D PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Helping people. It’s who we are and what we do.

Lisa Sherych
Administrator

Ihsan Azzam, 
Ph.D., M.D.

Chief Medical Officer

______________________________________________________________________________________________
, 2023 

Mark Schaefer 
Orenco Systems, Inc 
814 Airway Ave 
Sutherlin, Oregon, 97479 

RE: ORENCO SYSTEMS, INC. Model AX2 -RT Treatment system. Size: 1 0 allons 

The above-referenced system has been reviewed and approval is given for the Orenco AX2 -RT Gallon 
water treatment systems in the tate of Nevada with the following conditions and meet all applicable 
requirements of NAC 444 for Aerobic Wastewater Treatment Units.  

Plans for the installation of the AX2 -RT Treatment System must be prepared by a State of Nevada Registered
Professional Engineer. The design engineer will be responsible for overseeing the construction and installation of
the system. The engineer shall, within 30 days after the date on which the construction of the system is
completed, submit a letter to the administrative authority stating that the system was constructed in
accordance with the approved plans.
The design plans for an aerobic wastewater treatment unit must include a schematic detailing a 24-hour
operating alarm system for the aerobic wastewater treatment unit.
A maintenance agreement for an annual inspection for the life span of the system must be submitted with the
application to construct. [NAC 444.8314]
The system must

each 30 milligrams or less per liter.
An aerobic wastewater treatment unit that produces effluent with a level of total suspended solids or

accordance with this section and NAC 444.8316 and 444.8318 before the unit may be used.
requirements pursuant to its Standard 40 system. Deviation from that

will require the system to be re-reviewed. [NAC 444.8316]

Please contact Southern Nevada Health District (Clark County) and Washoe County Health District (Washoe) for 
additional requirements their agencies may have to use the system within their jurisdiction. 

If you have any questions, please call me at (775) 546-5530. 

Sincerely

Teresa Hayes, Environmental Health Program Manager















 
 
 

 

 

 

    
  

     
     
 

     
    

     
     

    
     
 

     
  

 

 
 

   
  

 

 
 

 
  
  

 

 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

  
 

  
   
   
 
  
   
  
   
 
   
   
   
   
  
   
   
 
  
   
   
 

 
  
 

  
 

 
 

 



 
 
 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

  
 
 
 
  
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
  
 

  



Taylor Benedickt

2/10/2025

*Contract contingent on approval on 
completion of construction. 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

  

  

  

  

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 

  

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

       
 

    
 

      
 

    
 

       
 
 

 

 
 

 
 








